ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 19, 2012
1:34 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Denni s Egan, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senat or Linda Menard

Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Cathy G essel

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 116

"An Act offering nediation of disputed workers' conpensation
clainms by a hearing officer or other classified enployee of the
division of workers' conpensation and allowing collective
bargai ning agreenents to supersede certain provisions of the
Al aska Workers' Conpensation Act; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 116

SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS COMP.: COLL BARGAI NI NG MEDI ATI ON
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

03/ 25/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 11 (S) L&C, FIN

04/ 05/ 11 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 05/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 05/ 11 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

01/ 19/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

PAUL GRCSSI, Lobbyi st
Al aska State Pipe Trades and |ronworkers

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- January 19, 2012



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

J.D. WLKERSON, Owner

Giffard Steel Conpany

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

MR. STEVE RANK, Executive Director Safety and Health
| ronworkers I nternational Union

San Francisco, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

FRED BROMWN, Executive Director

Health Care Cost Managenent Corporation of Al aska (HCCMCA)
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

GREG KUCERA, Busi ness Manager

| ronwor kers Uni on, Local 751

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

JI' M BARRACK, Contractor

| ronwor kers Union, Local 751

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

MR. THOVAS ZI MVERMAN, Presi dent

Uni versal Wl ding and Fabrication, Inc.
North Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 116.

MR. M KE MONAGLE, Director

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Departnment of Labor and Wor kforce Devel opnent ( DOLWFD)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 116.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:34: 02 PM

CHAIR DENNI' S EGAN called the Senate Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Davis, G essel and Chair Egan

SB 116- WORKERS' COWP.: COLL BARGAI NI NG/ MEDI ATI ON

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- January 19, 2012



1:34: 28 PM
CHAI R EGAN announced the consideration of SB 116.

1:37:11 PM

PAUL GROSSI, |obbyist for the Alaska State Pipe Trades and
| ronwor kers, Juneau, Al aska, explained that he had given past
testimony supporting SB 116. He stressed that SB 116 was not a
panacea to fix everything in Alaska's W rkers' Conpensation
program but that it provides an opportunity for groups to
develop a pilot-project to save noney on these issues. SB 116
may provide an alternate way for dealing with rising expenses,
primarily by providing enabling |anguage to allow groups the
opportunity to develop a program He reiterated that the primary
intent is to | ower workers' conpensation costs. He added that an
early treatnent system developnent is also part of the plan,
which allows enployees a chance to return to work, saving
enpl oyee and enpl oyer groups on the investnment nade in training.

1: 40: 05 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if SB 116 nakes workers relinquish their
freedons and liberties in choosing their health care provider
and beyond | ocal Juneau support for SB 116, could he name others
t hat support it.

MR. GROSSI responded that the Anerican Federation of Labor and
Congress of Industrial Organizations (AFL-CIO had endorsed SB
116 in 2011, but he didn't know if it would continue its support
in 2012.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the AFL-CIO |located in Al aska supports
SB 116.

MR, GROSSI replied yes.

CHAI R EGAN stressed that witness testinony on SB 116 during the
2011 session renmains on the record and asked if M. Gossi was
extending an invitation for the comrittee to attend an open
house next week.

MR GROSSI confirmed that a luncheon and tour at the |ocal
Pipefitters Training Facility was scheduled for the commttee on
Thur sday, January 26, 2012.

1: 42: 38 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the Juneau Pipefitters Training
Facility was simlar to the training facility in Fairbanks.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 3- January 19, 2012



MR. GROSSI explained that there are three separate union |ocals;
Anchor age, Fairbanks and Juneau. He nentioned being hopeful that
uni on representatives from the Anchorage and Fairbanks training
facilities wll be in attendance at next week's luncheon to
address the senators' questions.

1:43: 24 PM

J.D. W LKERSON, owner , Giffard Steel Conpany, Fai r banks
Al aska, said he is in favor of SB 116. He enphasized that
wor kers' conpensation is a large part of Giffard Steel's
operating costs and feels "in the back seat”™ with the current
program He believed that SB 116 could provide him with cost
savi ngs w thout jeopardizing individual care choices.

1:44: 38 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL asked in what way M. W]l kerson feels like he is
"in the back seat" regarding workers' conpensation for
enpl oyees.

MR. WLKERSON referred to past workers' conpensation cases at
Giffard Steel in which he sent letters to the D vision of
Wrkers' Conpensation and received no replies other than
financial statenents and said he believes interacting with an
appointed trustee would help him feel nore inforned about the
claims. The current system provides nminimal information for the
busi ness owner.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how he felt about l|osing the option of
sel ecting the independent nedical evaluation (IME) physician for
a second opi ni on.

MR. WLKERSON replied that he was not 100-percent sure what
options enployers currently have, but was ready to | ook at other
opti ons.

1:46: 44 PM

SENATOR  Qd ESSEL stat ed t hat Al aska' s pr esent wor ker s
conpensation process allows an enployer to ask for a second
opinion pertaining to the findings of the first physician and
she advised M. WIlkerson to take a closer look at SB 116's
i npact on enployers' options for a second opi nion.

1:47:16 PM

STEVE RANK, Executive Director, Safety and Health, Ironworkers
International Union, California, said he supported SB 116. He
said he was involved in developing California's Collectively

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- January 19, 2012



Bar gai ned Workers Conpensation (CCBWC) program in 2003 and that
it was established for the very same reasons that are being
explored in Alaska. He stressed that the CCBWC was created to
hel p inprove the delivery of medical benefits to injured workers
without dimnishing rights. He also stated that the CCBW
prograns are voluntary.

MR. RANK enphasi zed that nothing in the CCBWC di m nishes |abor's
or managenent's ability to get a second opinion and that it |ed
to labor and managenent working together. Both parties have
medi cal specialists and experienced hearing officers to expedite
claims in a tinely nmanner, leading to a win-win for |abor,
managenent and i nsurance conpani es.

1: 50: 57 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN j oi ned the conmm ttee.

MR. RANK pointed out that independent reviews and audits were
conducted in the state of Mnnesota and their Collective
Bargai ning Agreenent (CBA) had shown a reduction in nedical
costs, lost time and days from work and litigation to help
resol ve di sputes.

He pointed out that delay in resolving workers' conpensation
cases is the primary cause for higher costs and the CBA program
encourages the enployer, insurance carrier, union ombudsnman and
program trustees to work together and help expedite clains. He
stressed that Ironworkers International would not back a CBA for
its menbers unless it had been shown to be successful as in
California and Nevada.

He pointed out that prograns from a CBA would take tinme to
establish, and as they develop, there would be an opportunity to
review and evaluate success. He offered Illinois as an exanple
of a state that had recently started a CBA pilot-program to
address "out of control"™ workers' conpensation costs.

He enphasi zed that a CBA would provide an avenue for all parties
to work together. He explained that injured workers in the CCWBC
program have access to an established comrunication network: a
uni on onbudsman wth 24-hour access, independent case nurse
managers with no insurance carrier, and a union or mnmanagenent
affiliate trained to answer nedical questions rather than
dealing with a clainms officer.

In closing, he summarized that while costs continue to increase,
the CBA prograns have proven successful in California and

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 5- January 19, 2012



Nevada. He urged themto pass SB 116 and suggested adding a CBA
review after 12 to 18 nonths.

1:56: 28 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL stressed being "100-percent on the sanme page"
with M. Rank. She noted that the Alaska Medical Dispute
Resol ution Conparisons ( AVDRO) diagram showed a Ilimted
selection option for the enployee under a CBA system when
conpared to the current Alaska Statutory Wrkers' Conpensation
System (ASWCS) that provides an option to injured enployees to
sel ect whatever physician they want - perhaps their chil dhood
famly doctor or a specialist. If an enployer has questions
about the injured enployee's nedical exam nation results, ASWS
allows himto choose his own physician for a second opinion. She
said SB 116 limted an enployee's choice of physician to the
narrower CBA "approved list" and an enployer's second choice
option to a list selected by an arbitrator. She said
California's and Nevada's CBA shows a significantly |I|arger
nunber of healthcare providers to choose from and asked how many
there were.

MR. RANK responded that California and Nevada CBA' s allow
enpl oyees to choose a physician for general health and welfare
reasons; however, a physician specialist listing is provided for
knees, back, shoulders, hands and related injuries which require
significant expertise. He added that physicians that abuse
proper billing practices for the CBA are renoved from the
approved provider listing. He concluded that since the CBA took
effect in 2003, no negative feedback has been received from
infjured workers or union representatives in California and
Nevada. Current data supports the fact that a CBA for well-
or gani zed workers' conpensation prograns do worK.

2:02: 34 PM

FRED BROW, Executive Director, Health Care Cost Managenent
Corporation of Alaska, Inc. (HCCMCA), Fairbanks, Al aska, said
t hey support SB 116.

2:03:57 PM

GREG KUCERA, Business Manager, Al aska I|ronworkers, Anchorage,
Al aska, said he supports SB 116. He explained that collective
bar gai ni ng between | abor and managenent will result in a "higher
qual i ty" list of physi ci ans, speci al i st s, i ndependent
facilitators and case nanagenent nurses giving injured workers
the best care and path back to full enploynent as quickly as
possi ble. He concluded that SB 116 would foster a cooperative
effort to address cost savings and quality care.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 6- January 19, 2012



2:09: 07 PM
CHAIR EGAN asked if SB 116 wll speed up the resolve of the
injury dispute and medi ati on process.

MR. KUCERA replied yes, due to a "teameffort” structure.

2:09: 56 PM

JIM BARRACK, Contractor, Ironworkers Local 751, Anchorage,
Al aska, said he supports SB 116. He noted that SB 116 was
explained to the Al aska Steel Erectors Association neeting |ast
year and it received positive feedback from nmenbership. He
believed that it would lead to inproved care and service for
injured workers along with cost reduction for enployers.

2:12: 55 PM

MR THOVAS  ZI MVERMAN, Presi dent, Uni ver sal welding and
Fabrication, Inc., North Pole, Al aska, declared his support for
SB 116, clarifying his status as a contractor and not an Al aska
| ronworkers Union representative. He welconmed the concept of a
CBA for workers' conpensation which would help provide an
opportunity for contractors to control costs and assure that
enpl oyees receive the level of <care they deserve and are
entitled to. He said he is encouraged by the AFL-CIOs
willingness to work with nmanagenent.

He reflected on his 35 years in the industry and pointed out how
individuals place faith in the current system that m ght not
offer alternative care solutions and that a CBA program provi des
i ndependent practioners as a sounding-board to give advice. He
also reflected on Senator G essel's comments on the |Independent
Medi cal Evaluation (I ME) process currently used in the ASWS for
second physician opinions and pointed out that the current |Me
stage is used only after many nonths had el apsed. He stated his
belief that a CBA preferred-physician listing would speed up the
process and drive down costs related to second opinion
eval uations without |jeopardizing enployee rights. He said that
“"time is noney" and enployees returning to work sooner wn by
earning nore as a productive enployee versus inconme from
wor kers' conpensation benefits and enployers win by avoiding
| osses in production. He encouraged |egislators to give SB 116 a
try with sunset and review paraneters.

2:18: 04 PM

MR MKE MONAGLE, Director, D vision of Wrkers' Conpensation
Al aska Departnment Labor and Wrkforce Developnment (DOLVD),
stated they have a neutral position on SB 116.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- January 19, 2012



SENATOR PASKVAN asked what he |iked and does not |ike about SB
116.

MR. MONAGLE replied that since the division has a neutral
position, he would not express his Ilikes or dislikes. He
reflected on previous testinony and agreed that workers'
conpensation costs are a concern to everyone.

SENATOR PASKVAN restated his question saying he wanted to know
if SB 116 will help or not help to save on costs. He suggested
that a concern for costs is irrelevant to the decision that has
to be nade to actually help with cost reduction.

MR MONAGLE replied that SB 116 is new legislation and that
other states claim savings using that process. But he stated
that neither the division nor the departnment has the ability to
collect data and estimte what inpact SB 116 woul d have on rates
in Al aska.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if he thought it was worth the risk to
Al aska to try SB 116.

MR. MONAGLE responded that it was up to the Senate Labor and
Commerce Conmmittee to determ ne.

CHAI R EGAN commented that the State of Al aska ranks nunber one
for workers' conpensation costs and asked how it could get
Wor se.

MR. MONAGLE divulged that Al aska's workers' conpensation rates
were ranked second highest in the nation since 2008, but that
the state of Montana recently passed legislation that could
return Alaska to first place.

2:21:26 PM

MR. MONAGLE added that he did not know if SB 116 would bring
rates down and acknow edged that it would take tine to determ ne
t he savi ngs.

CHAIR EGAN stated that two or three prior wtness testinonies
claimed SB 116, with a scheduled review, would be worth trying
and asked if the departnent would take issue with doing that.

MR. MONAGLE reiterated the departnent's neutral position, but

added that approximately three years would be required to
coll ect data and determ ne actual cost savings.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 8- January 19, 2012



CHAIR EGAN inquired if it is in the departnent's best interest
to resolve workers' conpensation issues in a tinelier manner.

2:23:46 PM

MR. MONAGLE responded that any |egislation that saves tine and
nmoney is good for Alaska's workers. He renmarked that the dispute
resolution process is conplicated; sone cases require years of
medi ation to resolve nedically conplex issues. He said their
hearing officers are asked to nediate approximately 50 dispute
cases per year with a 90-percent success rate.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there was a better idea to try first
rather than SB 116.

2:25:38 PM
MR. MONAGLE answered that he was not aware of any other
| egi slation that reduces Al aska's workers' conpensation rates.

SENATOR PASKVAN, for clarification, asked if beyond | egislation
was there an alternate idea, process or procedure to start
first, which benefits workers and enployers regarding workers'
conpensat i on.

2:26: 05 PM
SENATOR MENARD j oi ned the commi ttee.

MR MONAGLE stated that he had no better ideas to offer the
committee at this tine.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted her background as a healthcare provider
and experience wth workers' conpensation cases and second
opi nion requests. She pointed out that requests for second
opinions from an alternate physician have resulted in solutions
bei ng found which speed the individual returning back to work at
a functional Ilevel and asked what percentage of workers

conpensati on cases request a second opi nion.

MR. MONAGLE said that the terminology is inconsistent and an
| ndependent Medical Evaluation (IME) is not considered a second
opi nion when a general practioner refers an injured worker to a
specialist. An IME is considered a second opinion when the
enpl oyer requests it. He added that disputes typically occur
when a second opinion is requested to address the injured
enpl oyee's disability | evel

2:28: 31 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 9- January 19, 2012



SENATOR G ESSEL asked how often an I ME i s requested.

MR. MONAGLE replied that he did not know and said that |M:
approval is not required by the division and added that the
Enpl oyee Conpensation Board (ECB) gets involved when parties
have a di spute between doctors when a Second | ndependent Medi cal
Evaluation (SIME) is requested. He explained that the ECB has a
list of its own medical experts. Injured workers are sent for an
i ndependent eval uation, which is separate from the previous two
doctors wused in a specific case. He nentioned that the ECB
handl es approxi mated 1500 Sl ME cases per year.

2:29: 27 PM
SENATOR DAVIS comented that SB 116 provides enabling
legislation that will only succeed if the parties involved work

together, and she questioned the departnment's neutrality on SB
116 when alternative suggestions for inprovenent have not been
brought forward. She added that data obtained from states which
have adopted CBA's for workers' conpensation cases would be
hel pful to the commttee.

CHAIR EGAN said he agreed with Senator Davis and that CBA data
from other states was currently being conpiled. He asked what
the nenber t ur nover is for the Division of Wr ker s'
Conpensation's ECB

2:31:46 PM

MR. MONAGLE replied that annually there is a one or two seat
turnover. He added that the ECB is staffed with newly appointed
and experienced board nenbers.

CHAIR EGAN said he had verified via an associate who served on
the ECB that the conmmtnent as board nenber is very tinmne-
consum ng

MR. MONAGLE agreed that nenbership entails a mjor tine
comi t ment .

2:32:59 PM

CHAI R EGAN announced that no further questions would be taken
today and that the comittee would continue to gather
information for a decision on SB 116.

2:34: 17 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Egan adjourned the neeting at 2:34 p.m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -10- January 19, 2012



